


10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

REVISED AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, October 29, 2024

9:00 a.m.
Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the September 24, 2024, Board Meeting minutes

Public comments (2 minutes) on Agenda and Non-Agenda items:

Please state your name and city of residence
a. Inperson
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) comments will be forwarded to Board and
staff

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
e  Chair: Rev. Charles P. Lucas

Civilian Oversight Committee (COC)
. Board Liaison: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
. Board Liaison: Ms. Deidre McPherson

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
e Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
e Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions



RTA Board of Trustees
October 29, 2024

Page 2

15.

Introduction of resolutions:

A

2024-74 - Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority who retired during the third quarter
of 2024

. 2024-75 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-096 with Sam Schwartz

Consulting, LLC for fleet electrification study services in an amount not to
exceed $311,924.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

2024-76 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-112 with Sona Construction,
LLC for Project No. 19.60 — Brookpark Maintenance Facility modifications
in an amount not to exceed $1,281,000.00 (RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

2024-77 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-116 with Michael Baker
International, Inc. for Project 20.19 — On-Call Rail Engineering Services -
2024 in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of twenty-four (24)
months (RTA Capital and/or Development Funds, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

. 2024-78 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-124 with Cook Paving &

Construction Co., Inc. for GCRTA Central Rail Maintenance Facility
repave, as specified, in an amount not to exceed $353,865.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget)

2024-79 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-133 with Sunoco, LLC for the
furnishing of approximately 450,000 gallons of 87 octane unleaded
gasoline, as specified and as required, for each of three years at a cost of
plus $0.0313 per gallon above the OPIS index for year one, at a cost plus
$0.0338 per gallon above the OPIS index for year two, and at a cost of
plus $0.0363 per gallon for year three (General Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget)

2024-80 - Authorizing a change order to exercise an option under
Contract 2020-071 with Gillig, LLC for the purchase and delivery of forty
40-ft. low floor CNG coaches, spare parts and tooling, as specified, for an
amount not to exceed $28,893,874.40 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget)

. 2024-81 - Amending Resolution No. 2023-103 to provide for an increase

in the Fiscal Year 2024 appropriations for the current expenses and other
expenditures for the General Fund in the amount of $18,444,837 and the
Reserve Fund in the amount of $2,415,340 for the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

2024-82 - Amending budget appropriations for the Fiscal Year (“FY”)
2024 Capital Improvement Budget to provide for an increase of
$101,502,256



RTA Board of Trustees
October 29, 2024
Page 3

J. 2024-83 - Authorizing the establishment of a three-year overall annual
goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation in the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s federally funded contract
procurement opportunities for Federal Fiscal Years 2025 through 2027
and also authorizing its submission to the Federal Transit Administration

16. Secretary-Treasurer’'s Report:

a. General Fund Revenue — September 30, 2024 compared to September
30, 2023

b. General Fund Revenue — period ending September 30, 2024 compared
to budget

c. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2024, actual receipts
through October 2024

d. Inventory of Treasury Investments as of September 30, 2024

e. Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of September 30, 2024

f. ~ Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through September
30, 2024

g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of September 30, 2024

h. Composition of Investment Portfolio as of September 30, 2024

i. Banking and Financial Relationships as of September 2024

17. General Manager’s Report

18. President’s Report

19. Old Business

20. New Business:
a. Proposed 2025 Board and Committee Meeting schedule
b. APTA TRANSform Conference Update

Update from Board Members who attended the APTA TRANSform
Conference in Anaheim, CA, Sept. 29-Oct. 2, 2024.

21. Executive Session Requested:

a. To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline,
promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee or official.

b. To enable the Board to conference with GCRTA attorneys for information-
gathering, fact-finding and to receive legal advice.

22. The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November 19, 2024
in the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth
Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s
Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public
is welcome to attend in person.

23. Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:00 a.m. September 24, 2024
Board Members: Koomar (Chair), Welch (Vice Chair), Elder, McPherson, Pacetti, Sleasman, Weiss
Not present: Biasiotta, Love, Lucas

Staff: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Davidson, Fields, Flannery, Fleig, Ford-Marshall,
Freilich, Ganther, Garofoli, Gautam, Gibbons, Hudson, Jones, Jupina, Kirkland, Schipper, Schmitt,
Talley, Togher, Walker-Minor, Young

Public: Buford, Folmar, Gibbons, Katusin, Loh, Rosenberger, Zhang

The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. There were seven (7) Board members present. Sophia
Stern, Executive Assistant, Administration and External Affairs, filled in for Theresa Burrage for this

meeting.

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of
the meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons,
and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding
notice of meeting had been complied with.

Minutes

The minutes from the August 27, 2024, Board Meeting had been previously distributed and reviewed,
and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no corrections. It was
moved and seconded. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda and Non-Agenda ltems

The public comment section has been consolidated to include agenda and non-agenda items.

1. Shawndra Folmar — Shawndra was diagnosed with multiple sclerosis in August 2021 at the
age of 33. Paratransit helped her adapt to her new condition. RTA's paratransit service
convinced her not to move out of state. The service gets you everywhere you need to go.

2. Jason Zhang — Westlake, OH — Jason heard there were plans to phase out articulated buses.
Route 51 has bad crowding, taking 5-10 minutes at a stop. The 55 and 22 use articulated
buses on weekdays and those routes would see crowding without the artics at certain times.
During the recent rail shutdown, the 66R bus was at crush capacity. He's heard of the plan to
address crowding, but there is an operator shortage so additional buses are added when
crowding gets so bad, it is unable to board. Sixty-foot buses should replace the buses being
phased out. This would relieve crowding and improve travel times. By having a pool of 60ft
buses you do not need more operators for an additional run. This adds flexibility for
unpredictable increases in passengers that an additional scheduled run can't account for.
Eliminating these buses will increase costs, reduce on time performance and hurt ridership.

3. April Buford — Cleveland, OH — Operators are not allowed to leave the vehicle to assist her
when they pick her up at her home due to an operator being bitten by a dog at her home. She
suggested they meet her in the driveway. On September 11, an operator from GC Logistics
was rude to her. Dispatch changed her pick-up time without notifying her or the operator. She




RTA Board of Trustees
September 24, 2024
Page 2 of 4

was told she was a problem. Some operators take a smoke break or are on the phone when
they are supposed to assist her. Ms. Terry said they would follow up with her.

4. Airric Stewart — The note keeping for these meetings is inefficient. The phone survey is still not
working. There should be a survey set up for Paratransit riders.

Mr. Davidson, Director of Paratransit said the phone survey is random. It has been tested and
works as designed. It asks three questions and thanks the caller for their feedback. Ms. Terry
added that there are several ways to send comments; via email, phone, in person and by
letter. She encouraged customers to send in their comments and suggestions. Staff are
managing the concerns. The phone survey is for additional input. She asked staff to allow
customers to opt in or out of the survey and ensure the survey is equitable and follows
industry standards.

5. lsaac Shimsky-Agosto — Cleveland, OH (webform) - Earlier this year, RTA added a bus shelter
on Adelbert Road, near the intersection with Euclid Avenue. It has made that stop a lot more
comfortable to use. It is a big shelter with a bench long enough for multiple people to use,
without being on top of each other. You are protected from wind in all directions. Under certain
conditions, | used to walk further to another stop, but there is no need to do so anymore. |
recommend that RTA expand the use of shelters like this all over the region.

Committee Reports

Mr. Sleasman reported that the Ad Hoc Technology Committee met September 16, 2024 at4 p.m. It
was a robust meeting about fare collection, EZfare, smart cards, open payments and account-based
ticketing. The meeting and minutes are posted online.

Ms. Welch announced that the Civilian Oversight Committee (COC) meets tonight at 5 p.m. Mayor
Koomar added that the Audit Committee meets Nov. 6. He encouraged Board members to attend to
get an overview of the Internal Audit Department activities.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

Ms. Ford Marshall introduced the new employees and promotions. There were 33 new hires and 4
promotions. Ms. Terry introduced Chad Schmitt who is a new hire in the Legal Division.

Introduction of Resolutions

A. 2024-70 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-73 with Stephen J. Hall DBA Firelands
Vending to provide Authority-wide vending services for a period of three years with
two, one-year options (Revenue Generating, Variable amount based upon sales), the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pacetti, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved
by unanimous vote.

B. 2024-71 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-094 with WSP USA Inc. for Ticket Vending
Machine consultant services in an amount not to exceed $173,716.94 for the base
contract and in amounts not to exceed $88,085.66 and $117,970.09 for option years 1
and 2, respectively, for a total contract not to exceed $379,772.69 (General Fund,
Management Information Services Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Mr. Sleasman, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.

C. 2024-72 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-138 with Splash Business Intelligence, Inc. to
provide annual maintenance and support services for a period of one year in an



RTA Board of Trustees
September 24, 2024
Page 3 of 4

amount not to exceed $105,131.25 (General Fund, Management Information Services
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by
Ms. Pacetti and approved by unanimous vote.

D. 2024-73 - Expressing sincere appreciation to the Cleveland Foundation and
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to accept a grant for
$105,000 for the purpose of sponsoring a fare-free Election Day on November 5, 2024,
the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Welch and
approved by unanimous vote.

Mr. Andrew Katusin, Program Officer, Grantmaking Initiative, Cleveland Foundation
thanked RTA for this partnership. Harvard University says that 66% of people with a
car vote and 36% of people without a car vote. This grant ensures that transit is free
on Election Day across the county. Ms. Terry thanked the ATU leadership for their
collaboration. Clarence King, Union President. Darnell Morris, Vice President. Omeal
Mullings, Assistant Business Agent. She thanked the HR team for their hiring efforts,
reducing the operator shortfall to 60.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report.
The annual inflation rate had reached a high of 9.1% in June 2022. It has come down to 2.5% in
August 2024. The FOMC reduced interest rates to 5% after a 0.5% reduction on September 19.
August ridership was 9.1% higher compared to August 2023. Pre-COVID, we are still 5 million rides
lower or 23.5%. Through August all modes have seen an increase in ridership.

August 2024 fare revenue is 55.8% above July 2024, This is largely due to a receipt of $1.2 million
(based on timing) from CMSD for student passes. This number is 53.2% above budget. As a result
of the timing issues, compared to pre COVID passenger fare revenue of $25.6 million, we are $4
million lower or 15.6%. Throughout the Pandemic, sales tax has remained stable. September 2024
receipts were 2.2% lower than September 2023, YTD we are 0.9% higher compared to last year.
YTD 2024 versus 2023, 11 of the 23 categories that make up the sales tax base were positive.
Online sales remained strong at 11.7% higher. Regular and statewide sales were 0.1% higher and
maotor vehicles and watercraft were 3.1% lower.

Selected Data

Total Long-Term Debt — 12/31/2023 $ 30.3 million
Average Investment Yield — YTD 4.49%
Cash and Investments
Unrestricted (General Fund) $ 33.2 millien
Restricted $345.8 million
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $378.9 million

The Authority makes principal payments on the long-term debt once a year. A payment of $8 million
plus interest will be made in December. The total debt service including interest would be roughly
$8.7 million. As a measure of protection for investors they set aside monthly amounts and most of
that is already covered.

Mayor Weiss asked with the reduction in interest rates by the Federal Reserve Bank, if the plan is to
budget interest income lower in 2025. Mr. Gautam said historically they have been conservative.



RTA Board of Trustees
September 24, 2024
Page 4 of 4

They will review the budget for 2025 and adjust accordingly. Many of the investments have staggered
terms so there may not be a tremendous amount of impact.

General Manager, CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. Dr. Walker Minor, Deputy General
Manager, Administration and External Affairs along with Ohio Public Transit Association (OPTA)
leadership met with Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) members, September 4 in Columbus
to discuss the 2026-2027 Transportation Budget and increased state funding. Emphases were made
for greater flexibility with ODOT funding.

RTA hosted the Toledo Area Regional Transit Authority (TARTA) August 29 at RTA to discuss Bus
Rapid Transit (BRT) and Transit Oriented Development (TOD). RTA is one of the top agencies for
BRT. Ms. Terry along with OPTA members met with Governor DeWine's policy staff on September
12, 2024, in Columbus to emphasize transit's role in workforce development, economic growth,
increased funding, and stronger state-local partnerships to expand transit access, mobility and equity
initiatives. Women’s Transportation Seminar (WTS) awarded RTA's Baby on Board program the
Northeast Ohio Innovative Transportation Solutions award, September 17, at the Great Lakes
Science Center. WTS also awarded Ms. Terry the Northeast Ohio Leadership Award at the same
event. Both recognitions will be eligible to compete at the International level in 2025.

Thanks to a $105,000 grant from the Cleveland Foundation, RTA will be providing free rides (on all
modes) on Election Day, November 5. This grant award will remove barriers so that all residents can
participate in the democratic process. RTA also received a grant from the Cleveland Foundation in
2020. In memory of Michael York, former Deputy General Manager, Operations for RTA from 1998-
2017, RTA held a dedication ceremony September 6 at the West 117" Street Madison Rapid Station.
Mr. York's family, RTA leadership, union members and staff were in attendance. RTA proudly
celebrates National Co-Responder & Crisis Responder Week, September 15-21, 2024.

Ms. Terry participated in the Cleveland Leadership Center's (CLC) virtual lunch break series,
September 18. The series is available on YouTube. Key points included public transportation in
promoting sustainability, connectivity and social equity across Greater Cleveland, advocacy as well as

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion.

President's Report

The Board of Trustees held a retreat last week. They didn't get through the entire agenda, so Mayor
Koomar plans to follow up with each board member to get feedback about their committees. He
wished Sophia Stern a happy birthday.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 29, 2024 in the Board Room of
the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date.
The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:56 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO, 2024-74

EXPRESSING CONGRATULATIONS TO THE EMPLOYEES OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY WHO RETIRED

DURING THE THIRD QUARTER OF 2024

WHEREAS, the following employees retired from the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority during the third quarter of 2024 after numerous years of dedicated public
service:

Name Title Work Location
Katherine Underwood Rail Operator Rail

Shelia Johnson Bus Operator Triskett

Joseph Mocilnikar Bus Operator Triskett

Edward Isokov Bus Operator Triskett

Sharon Giles Bus Operator Triskett

Ricky Buck Assistant Supervisor-Equipment Hayden

Paul Hudy Signal Technician Central Svc Bldg.
Audie Rivers Line Maintainer Central Svc Bldg.
Michael Capek Engineering Pro Mgr.- Facilities Main Office Bldg.

WHEREAS, these retirees faithfully gave of their skills, time and talents to provide high
quality public transportation to the community; and

WHEREAS, these retirees did much to contribute to the quality of life in Greater
Cleveland by providing much-needed public transit service and protecting our valuable
environment; and

WHEREAS, the retirees’ outstanding diligence in the performance of their jobs was of
immeasurable value to both riders and residents of Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, these retirees represent hundreds of years of invaluable public transit
experience, and they will be missed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the sincere congratulations and gratitude of the Board of Trustees is
hereby extended to each of the above-named employees on the occasion of their retirement
from the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees offer their best wishes to the
retirees for continued success and happiness, which they so richly deserve.,

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: October 29, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer







































RESOLUTION NO, 2024-78

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-124 WITH COOK PAVING &
CONSTRUCTION CO,, INC. FOR GCRTA CENTRAL RAIL MAINTENANCE
FACILITY REPAVE, AS SPECIFIED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$353,865.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deems it
necessary to remove and replace asphalt pavement from the Central Rail Maintenance Facility
east end gate to the salt storage facility, and to adjust roadway castings to grade; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc., located at 4545 Spring
Road, Brooklyn Heights, Ohio 44131, was received on September 12, 2024, in an amount not to
exceed $353,865.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Cook
Paving & Construction Co., Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc. for the GCRTA Central
Rail Maintenance Facility Repave be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc. for
the removal and replacement of asphalt pavement from the Central Rail Maintenance Facility
east end gate to the salt storage facility and adjustment of roadway castings to grade.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to OH-2021-
050-307 in an amount not to exceed $353,865.00 ($283,092.00 in federal funds, which
represents 80% of total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc. will attempt to exceed the 16% minimum
DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: October 29, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



























RESOLUTION NO. 2024-80

AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER TO EXERCISE AN OPTION UNDER
CONTRACT 2020-071 WITH GILLIG, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE AND
DELIVERY OF FORTY 40-FT. LOW FLOOR CNG COACHES, SPARE PARTS
AND TOOLING, AS SPECIFIED, FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$28,893,874.40 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) must replace
revenue vehicles that have exceeded their useful life with similar environmentally friendly fuel-
efficient vehicles; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2021-022 authorized Contract No. 2020-071 ("Contract”)
with Gillig, LLC ("Gillig") for the manufacture and delivery of twenty 40-ft., CNG coaches, spare
parts, tooling and training with an option to procure an additional eighty 40-ft., CNG coaches,
spare parts, tooling and training, over the five year term of the contract; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2021-100 authorized Change Order No. 4 with Gillig
exercising the option to purchase twenty additional 40-ft. low floor CNG coaches; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2022-098 authorized Change Order No. 6 with Gillig
exercising the option to purchase twenty additional 40-ft. low floor CNG coaches; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the original options under the Contract, Gillig has offered to
manufacture and deliver the final forty 40-ft. low floor CNG coaches remaining under the
contract, plus spare parts and tooling, as spemflad for a total negotiated contract amount not to
exceed $28,893,874.40; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Gillig, as
negotiated, to be advantageous to the Authority, cost and other factors considered, and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from Gillig to provide forty 40-ft. low floor CNG coaches, spare
parts and tooling be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a change order for the exercise of an option to Contract
No. 2020-071 with Gillig, to provide funding for the purchase of forty 40-ft low floor CNG
coaches, spare parts and tooling, for a total change order amount not to exceed
$28,893,874.40.

Section 3. This contract option shall be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Fleet Management Department budget, including but not limited to FTA Capital Grants OH-
2018-002 in the amount not-to-exceed $9,534.00, OH-2018-027 in the amount not-to-exceed
$29,620.00, OH-2020-044-307 in the amount not-to-exceed $103,750.00, OH-2021-050-307 in
the amount not-to-exceed $1,190,315.91, OH-2021-050-338 in the amount not-to-exceed
$1,593,471.49, OH-2024-030-01 in the not-to-exceed amount $14,480,000.00, and local
advance pending award of FFY2023 Federal Transit Administration Low-No Emission grant
program in the amount not-to-exceed $4,042,000.00, SFY2024 Ohio EPA Diesel Emission
Reduction Grant (DERG) in the amount not-to-exceed $3,894,180.00, and SFY2023 Urban















To: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
Date: October 25, 2024
Subject: Proposed FY 2024 General Fund, Reserve Fund, and Capital Improvement Fund

Amendments — additional requested information

On October 24th, in a memorandum to you via email, staff shared the cost of in-house
Paratransit service, based on the National Transit Database (NTD) information from 2023.
Please note that the cost information shared represented a “fully loaded” cost since it
incorporates an allocated portion of administrative expenses, such as Legal, Accounting,
Payroll, Procurement, etc. on top of the direct cost of service.

While this may be an approved methodology for the FTA, we wanted to ensure we provided the
direct cost of Paratransit service, similar to what was presented to the Board on October 15,
2024 by Ms. Sutula and Mr. Davidson. This information below, based on 2023 accrual data,
provides for a better comparison.

Direct operating cost of in-house Paratransit Service: $14,966,629
Total Actual Revenue Hours for 2023: 156,174
Direct operating cost per hour for in-house Paratransit Service: $95.83
Direct operating cost per hour for outsourced Paratransit Service $ 67.66

KMS/















RESOLUTION NO. 2024-81

AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2023-103 TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE
IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT
EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR THE GENERAL FUND IN
THE AMOUNT OF $18,444,837 AND THE RESERVE FUND IN THE AMOUNT
OF $2,415,340 FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) has both a
legal and managerial requirement to establish the revenues to be received for the upcoming
fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other types of revenues, as well as estimates of all
expenditures or outlays for the operation of its public transportation system in the fiscal year
(“FY") to be paid or met from said revenue; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a budget for the Authority's
operations for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024 ("FY
2024 Budget”) was adopted by the Board of Trustees on December 19, 2023 through
Resolution No. 2023-103; and

WHEREAS, the General Fund is the general operating fund of the Authority and
accounts for all operating expenditures and transfers to other funds; and

WHEREAS, the Reserve Fund helps protect the Authority from future economic
downturns, as well as significant increases in fuel, hospitalization, and compensated absence
costs; and

WHEREAS, the General Fund budget has been closely monitored throughout the year
and has experienced significant increases in salaries, overtime, payroll taxes and fringe
benefits, and purchased transportation; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Authority to increase the General Fund
budget by $16,800,000 for the operating budget and increase the transfer to the Capital
Improvement Fund by $1,644,837, for a total increase in the General Fund of $18,444,837; and

WHEREAS, the Codified Rules & Regulation of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority ("Code Book") Section 460.03(b)(2) states that the reserve for compensated
absences shall not exceed 25% of the prior year's ending liability, and Code Book Section
460.03(b)(3) states that the reserve for hospitalization shall not exceed 10% of the prior year's
hospitalization costs; and

WHEREAS, as reported in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report Fiscal Year
2023, 25% of the compensated absence liability totaled $2,946,056, and 10% of the annual
hospitalization costs totaled $2,337,215; and

WHEREAS, at the end of 2023, compensated absence sub-fund had an excess of
$1,076,181, and the hospitalization sub-fund had an excess of $568,656, both of which will be
transferred back to the General Fund; and

WHEREAS, at the end of 2023, the Rolling Stock Reserve sub-fund had an excess of
$770,503 from interest earnings which will be transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund for
the Rail Car Replacement Program; and















RESOLUTION NO. 2024-82

AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR (‘FY") 2024
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE OF

$101,502,256

WHEREAS, there are both legal and managerial requirements to establish the revenues
to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other types of
revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the capital improvement
program of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“GCRTA”") to be paid from said
revenue during each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a Capital Improvement Budget for the
GCRTA for the Fiscal Year ("FY") beginning January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024
(“FY 2024") was adopted by the Board of Trustees on May 16, 2023 through Resolution No.
2023-40; and

WHEREAS, this amendment will allow an additional eighteen (18) railcars, rail
infrastructure modifications and corresponding contingencies to be added to the 2024 Capital
Improvement Budget; and

WHEREAS, the increase of appropriation for the FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget
by $101,502,256 will establish a sufficient balance in the FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget
to cover design and consultants, purchase of 18 railcars, spare parts, force account labor, and
rail infrastructure modifications at various stations and platforms.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriation budget set forth in Resolution No. 2023-40, adopted
May 16, 2023, be and is hereby amended as follows:

Current 2024 Appropriation Amended 2024 Appropriation
$146,274,914 $247,777,170

Section 2. That Resolution No. 2023-40 shall remain unchanged in all other respects,

Section 3. That the Capital Improvement Budget may be amended from time to time in
order to appropriate additional capital grant funds that may be received in FY 2024

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: October 29, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
THREE YEAR OVERALL ANNUAL DBE GOAL CALCULATION
FEDERAL FISCAL YEARS 2025-2027
(October 1 — September 30)

1) Adjusted DBE Base Figure
21.5% Unadjusted DBE Base Figure (Availability Study)
15.9% Estimated DBE Availability based on review of planned RTA contract
opportunities for FFY2025-2027
37.40% divided by two = 18.70% (Adjusted Base)

2) Overall Annual DBE Goal
(A) — Actual DBE Contracting for past 3 years

2021 21.80%
2022 13.40%
2023 29.00%

21.80% = Median Achievement

(B) - Proposed 2025-2027 Overall DBE Goal

18.70% Adjusted DBE Base Figure

21.80% DBE Achievement for past 3 years

40.50% Divided by two = 20.25%
Proposed Overall DBE Goal = 20.25%

(C) — Actual Race Neutral DBE
Contracting for past 3 vears

2021 3.6%
2022 3.2%
2023 3.2%
3.2% = Median Race Neutral Achievement 20.25%
Proposed 2025-2027 Race Neutral Goal is 3.2% 32%

17.05%
(D) — Proposed 2025-2027 DBE Goal
Race Neutral/Race Conscious Components

17.05%  Proposed Race 2025-2027 Conscious DBE Goal
3.20%  Proposed Race 2025-2027 Neutral DBE Goal
20.25%  Proposed 2025-2027 Overall DBE Goal



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY (GCRTA)

Federal Fiscal Years (FFY) 2025-2027
Three Year Overall Annual DBE Goal
Calculation Methodology

The proposed Overall Annual Goal for DBE participation on federally funded contracts in FFY 2025-
2027 (exclusive of transit motor vehicles) is 20.25%, as compared to the FFY 2022-2024 Three Year
Overall Annual DBE Goal of 21.5 %.

L. Determining the Overall Annual DBE Goal

GCRTA first determines a base figure for the relative availability of DBEs available to contract with
GCRTA. In accordance with DOT Regulation 49 CFR Part 26, GCRTA considered several factors
in setting the base figure including data from a local DBE availability study and the number, types
and dollar value of contracts expected to be awarded during federal fiscal year 2025-2027.

The base figure is taken from a local availability study completed in the GCRTA market area. The
study examined the availability of DBEs and minority firms in Cuyahoga County that are ready,
willing, and able to do business with GCRTA.

The following is the DBE Availability percentage data as identified by contract area:

CONSTRUCTION 35.29% DBE Availability
ARCHITECTURAL & ENGINEERING SERVICES 33.19% DBE Availability
GOODS & OTHER SERVICES 36.52% DBE Availability
OVERALL DBE AVAILIBILITY 35.01% DBE Availability

GCRTA adjusted this base figure to reflect the DBE participation GCRTA would expect in the
absence of discrimination. In doing so, GCRTA considered contracting opportunities expected to be
awarded during the federal fiscal years and the DBE firms that are ready, willing, and able to perform
such work as compared to the total contractors available in the market area.

After considering the above and GCRTA achievement for the past three years, we propose a Three
Year Overall Annual Goal or 20.25% for DBE Participation for FFY 2025-2027.

Il. Breakout of Estimated Race-Neutral and Race-Conscious Participation

GCRTA will meet the maximum feasible portion of the Overall Annual DBE participation Goal
using race-neutral methods. Race-neutral participation includes but is not necessarily limited to DBE
participation as a prime contractor obtained through customary competitive procurement procedures;
DBE participation as a subcontractor on a prime contract that does not carry a DBE goal and/or DBE
participation exceeding a contract goal; and DBE participation through a subcontract from a prime
contractor that did not consider a finrm's DBE status in making the award.

GCRTA used the average of the most recent three years’ actual race neutral attainment to estimate
the race neutral component of the 2025-2027 goal. As such, it is estimated that GCRTA will meet
the proposed Three Year Overall Annual DBE Goal of 20.25% as follows; 17.05% through race-
conscious measures and 3.2% through race-neutral means.






















{5012
L=l
(5Ll 2
{50952}
{3l¥ T
{HEIEN
(31600
%OTT
(96ZE F)

(9s82'gh

%950
WLE0
WETL
WFEL
%S0
(o58F 0}
("4 a1
(oe90°0)
(51570}

(g0 1)

FONVIEYA  FDNYHD
A53 % dLA % QLA €202

FEOT

SNSHIAN FEOL

Lek' 068 8LES
658'868 L6218
LEL' 296 TS
SIFBERESLE
8ii'eEa'oees
¥lg'Lig'L0Ls
ELL'sLe'ans
BEG'ES5°B9S
SEC'PALTRS
oLa‘LeL’Les
AWMLY

aia
vZoz

¥EE'CES'EITS
LOO'SET'LOTS
992'098'940%
SEL'805'954E
200'05L'vELE
BIFLELLLES
9EE'EE'F9S
E00'GL0' 198
049'9LL S
LET'BEE'EES
SIVINILS3

QLA
Lrdira

9EL'6LE LIS

L9£798L'96LE

E92'E5LELLE

ZLLBLYDSLE

LIETEFE0ELS

BSL'96L'B0LE

ZL'SLLLLEE
280°LL5'BELE
FPL'EEE LOLS
EFbLEsELS
E5Z'E0LEELS

BEB'EED LOLS

GLS'E0S'BES  LvEePEEES
E¥P'PESBAS ZE9°FOCFOS
BFS'GO0'ERS  LBL'EFS'DFS
TBE LIPS IES  A5L'¥RI0ZS
AYNLIW IVALIY
QLA aLa
£20T ZzZoz

{sal17g) (9680'2)
WlFE %2z g)
S%B50 %P50
{5LLE) %L0°L
W%08'E %I0°G
(o608 FL) (ohts L)
(seizoL) [5agL°0)
SO G LD
{meeel %490
{30z g {5e0s71)
ETETUTEE] THNVHD
ATHLNOW #202 % HLNOW
SNSYIATWNLOY  £202
ATHLNOW SNSHIN
FZOT $ZOT

9t'068"81TS

[+

0s

209'L66'02%
BrL'LIB'Ees
9EE'egb'Ees
l68'899'12%
PI6'ESL'EES
DoL'9s0'5LE
98L'L90'02%
£65'694'52%
GZSZ09°LES
LITE- 8- TR 3

IYNLIY
YTz

¥20Z ¥380L30 HONOHHL S1dI3034 VALY
SIAAYL ISN ANV S3TVS
ALIHOHLOY LISNYHEL TYNOIDIH ONYIIAITD YA LYIND

196png mojaq (€£8'269'F$) ‘%1 2-
E20Z 9noge 'SZE'LLT'LE '"%O0

aLi

186ipng $20 180130 Mojaq (LEL'IIE"LS) %19
E202 1290130 moj=aq (ELLDFPS) B9'E-

000°00C'892S  ELLLLE'LOTS

CEE'BSEZES
EEE'BSETES
TEEC'BEE'TES
EEE'BSE'ZES
CEE'BSE'TES
CEE'BSE'TES
£EE'S5E'2ES
CEE'SSE'TES
CEE'85E'TES
£EE'85E'TES
LEC'8SE'ZES
LEE'9SE'TES

ETRTTTESE
Yoz

SOE'¥EE'FSES

LLSBIS Ces
096'8L9'LE%
SIE'EEV LES
BEF LEV'EZS
155 BITEES
LPe'EC2'0es
ELEZ'LPO'EES
BESTEE'ELS
LIOVBOZ'0ES
¥Ba'BES'SES
QO6"L5H1ES
ZOS'APSLES

VLIV
£T0T

BOR'S5L'ZES
SEB'ZZ0'LES
ST5'FO5'TES
CFE'BLL0ZS
LOL'FO0'EES
061'SFZ'TES
¥TFBLOTES
TEG'6LL'ALS
STFELE'BLE
LD LIR'ETS
FTO'E59'6LS
I51'veR'0TS

IVNLIY
TE0T

Yauow
Faewwng

IVLOL
438W3230
HIFGNIA0ON

H3eoLllo
H3IgW3Ld3S
snany
AN

=l

AN

Ted¥
HIEYIN
AdVNYEIS
AN

aan=za3ad
HLNO®N






























	Meeting Notice
	Agenda
	Minutes
	2024-74
	2024-75
	2024-76
	2024-77
	DBE prime memo
	2024-78
	2024-79
	Gillig bus memo
	2024-80
	Budget memo - Board questions
	Budget memo - Addemdum
	2024-81
	2024-82
	DBE triennial goal memo
	2024-83
	Secretary-Treasurer's report
	DRAFT 2025 meetting schedule



